
 1 of 4 

 

SAUCON VALLEY LIBRARY TASK FORCE MEETING 

 

Date:  Thursday, July 14, 2011 

Time:  5:05 PM 

Location: Lower Saucon Township 

 

Present: Lower Saucon Township:  Jack Cahalan, Tom Maxfield 

Hellertown Borough:  Joseph Pampanin 

 Hellertown Area Library:  Jessica Goedtel, Alison Finkbeiner, Robin Rotherham, Lamar Handwerk 

 

Committees: 

Demographic/Statistics: Building: 

Alison Finkbeiner 

Lynn Koehler 

Jessica Goedtel 

Kim LaBrake 

Joe Pampanin 

Mike Evangelista 

 

Technology: Finance: 

Gail Nolf 

Mike Karabin 

Jack Cahalan 

Reverend Lamar Handwerk 

Tom Maxfield 

Cathy Gorman 

Tina Krasnansky 

 

1. Approval of Minutes from June 9
th
 meeting – Motion for approval of the June 9

th
 minutes.   All in favor. 

 

2. Committee Reports – Jack said not every committee has their people present.  The Finance Committee has 

no one present.   

 

 Demographic/Statistics – Ali said she has a census report with the age and sex breakdown.  She’ll 

hand it out next meeting when everyone is present.   

 

 Technology – Jack said he is going to try to work on how much broadband capacity is needed at 

the Hellertown Library.  The way they do it is they look at all the various services and resources 

that they want to use for the website, the wireless, social networking, the whole thing, and the 

number of computers and then figure out how much broadband capacity you need.  Robin said they 

just switched to broadband.  She said her guess would be 30 in and 10 out with Service Electric.  

Jack said they have to figure out what is the goal here with how much broadband will be needed.   

 

 Building – Joe said they are waiting for the census numbers.  The other thing would be when they 

get their wish list or what they want to put in this library settled more, that’s going to make it a lot 

easier to move forward.  Kim has been working on the rough sizes.  Parkland is looking at an 

expansion of their library.  It looks like it’s coming in at one square foot per person population-

wise, on average.  Kim has looked at several libraries and the populations, and the estimates 

they’ve come up with already are right within that target.  This would be for the total library.  If 

you look at the library and the population it serves, it’s about one square foot per person.  Parkland 

is making their proposal.  They have their wish list and they don’t have the money for it, but it 

looks like they are looking to put a lot into that library.  Someone said she’d like to see how they 

are handling it.  Robin said look at their website as she thought they had some funds already for 

their building.  They have the land now as well.  Joe said as far as how they are going to stage the 

project, he doesn’t have all the details on that.  From the standpoint of the estimates they are doing, 

nothing seems out of line and it seems like its on target with what’s out there.   

 

 Finance – No one present. 

 

 

3. Community Day – August 20, 2011 - Jack said the Hellertown Library does have a booth at Community 

Day and at the last meeting we discussed if we wanted to get out some information to the public about what 



 2 of 4 

 

the Task Force is working on.  Someone said in regards to the articles that came out, that would be a good 

idea.  Jack said you are going to have people passing by the booth.  You are not going to be able to engage 

them in a long discussion.  Do you want to hand something out?  Tom said a written statement about what 

our goals are and what we’ve investigated so far.  Jack said he could put something like that together.  Tom 

said it wouldn’t hurt to stress that it’s just an investigation.  There are no proponents or opposition.  

Someone said it has to be carefully phrased.  Put a blurb in there that says if you read our minutes, it looks 

like we made a decision, but that’s only because we talk about the expansion more than switching just 

because there’s a lot more to be talked about and a lot more to be discussed.  Joe said you kind of have to 

go through the process.  Jack said I order to determine if this is possible, we have to build a virtual library 

and put all the different components in there and then we have to figure out how much that’s going to cost 

both the Township and Hellertown Borough.  He’ll put something together.  They do have another meeting 

on August 11
th
, so the Task Force can look at it then and give final approval.  We could put a big title on it 

so the residents know what it’s about and just leave them at the booth.  Robin said would a Task Force 

member be at the booth?  Tom said it’s so preliminary right now.  Robin said she’ll be there part of the day.  

Joe said will that sheet have answers to commonly held misconceptions?  Someone said it might be helpful 

to have someone there from the Task Force.  Jack said they will review it at the next meeting. 

 

4. Assignments for next meeting – Jack said we all know what we need to do with the committees and keep 

working on that.   

 

Jessica said there were two articles that came out today - one from the Express Times and one from the 

Bethlehem PATCH.  The Bethlehem PATCH is the handout, and the Express Times article references that.  

When she saw this today, she wanted to write a response because there are a couple of the things they 

mention in the article that are not true.  She’d like to pass her response around to see how it sounds.  She’d 

like to do a letter to the editor in response to the article.  They mention that Hellertown has proposed 

charging Lower Saucon $15.00 per capita for library services as opposed to the $17.55 that Bethlehem 

charges, which we know is true for the first three years.  Then it would drop.  Robin said it would be two 

years.   

 

Someone said that’s even better.  Then it would drop down to $10.65 which Hellertown is paying and 

would be a major cost savings for Lower Saucon Township as opposed to what was written in the article.   

 

Joe said you may want to put the first two or three years.  We are just doing the rough budget.  The 

numbers are not exact.  Jack said the only comment he has is that it gets into a discussion on the pros and 

cons of the proposal that the Hellertown Library Board of Trustees gave us back in June 2010, which was 

preliminary.  That was your first shot at how you thought you could do it and that’s how it was received by 

the Township.  It wasn’t received as this is the final deal.  It was just a start.  What he tried to say in this 

article is that the Task Force will be looking at the whole big picture and will identify the actual costs of a 

consolidation.  We have a lot of investigating to do and we are not fixed on the original proposal.  We 

haven’t made any decisions.   

 

Jessica said that was her problem with the article as it was referencing all sorts of numbers.  That’s what 

her letter was leaning towards.  She doesn’t want to let people think its set in stone, but it is a proposed rate.  

Lamar said she should just let it go until we get the proposal and things are really ready.  That will just 

generate another letter and another letter.  Jessica said it’s hard to sit back and not respond.  She just 

doesn’t want people thinking that we are making a decision without considering everything.   

 

Tom said it is tough since this is the only thing out there and it gives people a reason to oppose it.  Jack said 

the BAPL’s argument is that the Township residents will be forced into a library which will be inadequate 

for their needs as compared to the BAPL which has everything they need, and that’s not the way proposal 

was.  The Council doesn’t want to make that type of decision.  They want to make a decision based on 

alternatives: here’s what available at the BAPL and here’s the cost.  Here’s the option if we were to 

consolidate with the HAL and expand the facility and services there and here’s what that will cost.   

 



 3 of 4 

 

Tom said it talks about $173,000 a year; however, they’ve held it at that amount because we made a stink.  

If someone thinks the $3 million expansion isn’t going to increase how much we have to pay for our 

residents, that’s crazy. It’s going to cost us more money.   

 

Robin said she thinks $1.5 million of the BAPL expansion was for asbestos removal.  Bethlehem is allowed 

to defend their position in the Township.  If she had your $173,000, she’d be defending her position also 

for the Township.   

 

Jessica said it’s a shame they haven’t defended their position sooner, by being active in your community or 

coming to your Council meetings.  To her, a library is community, and you want that library to be active in 

your community, outside of the four walls.  Not just a bookmobile driving to your communities.   

 

Jack said in BAPL’s defense, they have tried to do all of that since Janet Fricker took over.  They have an 

active Library Committee and they have invited Janet to some of their meetings and we talked about issues 

like the loss of state aid and some of the other things that were impacting the library.  He thinks this is more 

about the Task Force and the perceived threat of us leaving the library, which is not a threat, but rather an 

exploration that the Township is undergoing.  It does carry with it the possibility that the Township may go 

forward with a consolidation.  At this point, nothing has changed. The BAPL did ask to participate in the 

Task Force and we talked about that at one of our initial meetings, and we felt that the focus should be on 

the Township and Hellertown Area Library, not doing a comparison between the HAL and the BAPL.  

That’s not what we wanted to turn this into.  What the BAPL should be doing is getting information out to 

our residents about the services that are available there.  Drawing attention to what they feel are some 

problems that we’re facing with a potential consolidation is another whole thing.  One of the things that 

keeps coming up here is their contention that if we consolidate with the HAL we are going to tell our 

residents to keep going to the BAPL for free under the PA ACCESS program.  This has come up several 

times and it is incorrect. It was a comment that was made at a Hellertown Borough Council meeting. It was 

taken as we were going to stop paying the $173,000.00 and go to the HAL for a cheaper rate and then urge 

our residents to keep using the BAPL for free.  No one has ever said that.       

 

Somebody said if the Township joins the Hellertown Library, their people would still be able to go to the 

Bethlehem Library.  Someone said, in reality, people are going to go to the library they want to go to.  Jack 

said half of the people in Lower Saucon are going to the HAL and the HAL is not getting paid for them.   

 

Tom said one of our jobs here was to determine exactly what services our people didn’t want.  It’s very 

possible that there are services at the BAPL that we don’t currently use that we are paying for.  We talked 

earlier about the BAPL’s South Side Branch, which we don’t even know at this point if our residents use or 

not.   

 

Ali said that’s why she asked Lynn to see if they could get more specific statistics from the BAPL.  She 

wants to know what you want numbers on.  Someone said its valid information which we could use to 

determine what do they want in a consolidated library.   

 

Joe said what they would look for in the Building Committee is whether there is going to be a change in the 

demographics; are more children’s services being used in Bethlehem than we would need to account for in 

Hellertown.   

 

Ali said you need to know how many children’s books are being checked out of the Bethlehem Library.  

She doesn’t think that number has been provided yet.  Jack said we still need numbers and we are going to 

have to keep looking at.  What he tried to say in the article, and Tom said it earlier, was that no decisions 

have been made to leave the BAPL and consolidate with Hellertown. We are in a process that could take us 

all the way to July 2012 when we are supposed to come back with a report.  It then has to go back to the 

Council and they have to make a decision.  Joe said if you want to respond to anything, it’s anything that is 

factually incorrect.   

 



 4 of 4 

 

Jessica said that’s pretty much what she wanted to write.  Her issue was that you are talking about the 

things they are discussing but you are not here.  She’s okay with not publishing it, that’s why she brought it 

to the committee. 

 

5. Open Public Discussion – No comment. 

 

6. Next Meeting Date –August 11, 2011 at 5:00 pm. 

 

7. Motion to Adjourn:  Meeting adjourned.  The time was 5:35 PM. 


